
NEWS AND NOTES
PERSONAL AND MISCELLANEOUS

Compiled by the Managing Editor

The Nominating Committee of the American Political Science Associa-
tion has agreed unanimously upon the following nominations for officers
for 1947, to be acted upon at the Association's annual meeting at Cleve-
land in December: president, Arthur W. Macmahon, Columbia Univer-
sity; first vice-president, Quincy Wright, University of Chicago; second
vice-president, V. 0. Key, Jr., Johns Hopkins University; third vice-
president, Charles Fairman, Stanford University; members of the Execu-
tive Council for 1947-49: Taylor Cole, Duke University; George A.
Graham, Princeton University; Llewellyn Pfankuchen, University of Wis-
consin; John A. Vieg, Pomona College; and Belle Zeller, Brooklyn College.
The members of the Nominating Committee are: John E. Briggs, State
University of Iowa; Everitt S. Brown, University of Michigan, Robert E.
Cushman, Cornell University; Edward M. Earle, Institute for Advanced
Study; and Denna F. Fleming, Vanderbilt University (chairman).

Professor Howard B. Calderwood has resigned his post at the University
of Michigan to accept a position in the Department of State at Washing-
ton.

Under a cooperative arrangement between the University of Chicago
and the University of Puerto Rico, Professor Rexford G. Tugwell is spend-
ing the winter in San Juan.

Professor J. A. C. Grant has returned to active duty at the University
of California at Los Angeles after a sabbatical leave spent in Colombia
and other countries of Middle America.

Two recent additions to the faculty of the School of Advanced Inter-
national Studies in Washington are Dr. Paul M. A. Linebarger, as pro-
fessor of Asiatic politics, and Dr. Philip B. Thayer, as professor of inter-
national commercial law.

The Walgreen Foundation at the University of Chicago offered during
the autumn quarter a series of lectures on civilian-military relations, the
series starting with Messrs. Hanson Baldwin and Paul H. Appleby. Mr.
Louis Brownlow continued his autobiographical series with two lectures
on his experiences as a state house and city hall reporter. Professor C. Her-
man Pritchett gave lectures, also, on "The Roosevelt Supreme Court."

Dr. D. F. Fleming, of Vanderbilt University, spent the summer in the
State Department as an adviser to Bernard M. Baruch, the United States
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representative on the United Nations Atomic Commission. During the
current term, he is on leave from Vanderbilt to take part in an investiga-
tion headed by Professor Edward Mead Earle at the Institute for Ad-
vanced Study, Princeton, New Jersey. Professor Fleming's classes at
Vanderbilt are in charge of Mr. Hedley V. Cooke, Jr., recently resigned
from the U. S. Foreign Service.

Dr. Fred V. Cahill, Jr., assistant professor, has returned to the Uni-
versity of Oregon following his release from active military duty. During
the war he served as executive to the Intelligence Officer, South Pacific
Base Command in New Caledonia and, following training in Military
Government at the University of Virginia and at Harvard, served as
Liaison Officer in the Korean Division of General Headquarters, Supreme
Commander for the Allied Powers, Tokyo.

Recent contributions to the Endowment Fund of the American Politi-
eal Science Association include two thousand dollars from Professor John
A. Fairlie, of the University of Illinois, and one thousand dollars from
Dean Isidor Loeb, of Washington University.

During the month of November, the Albert Shaw lectures on diplomatic
history at the Johns Hopkins University were delivered by Professor Mal-
bone W. Graham, of the University of California (Los Angeles), on the
subject of "American Diplomacy and the International Community."
Five lectures were included in the series.

Professor J. Eugene Harley, of the University of Southern California,
spent last summer in South America, principally in Rio de Janeiro and
Buenos Aires, and with a view principally to studying at first-hand prob-
lems of regional Latin-American cooperation with the United Nations
and also completing studies of the official censorship of motion pictures in
Argentina and Brazil. Professor Harley is president of the United Nations
Association, Southern California Branch.

At the University of Pennsylvania, Mr. Alfred H. Cope has been ap-
pointed instructor and Dr. R. Jean Brownlee, personnel officer in the
College for Women at the University, part-time instructor.

Dr. Leo S. Rowe, director-general of the Pan American Union since
1920 and a former president of the American Political Science Associa-
tion, was struck and killed by an automobile in Washington on December
5. A memorial will appear in the next issue of the REVIEW.

After extensive military government experience in Okinawa and other
parts of the Far East, Dr. John T. Caldwell has returned to Vanderbilt
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University with the rank of Lieut. Commander. Mr. Henry N. Williams
also has rejoined the department at Vanderbilt after service as a captain
in the Army, with a long term of work in the historical division of the War
Department.

At Beloit College, Dr. William S. Shepherd, formerly of the State Uni-
versity of Iowa, has been appointed assistant professor, and Mrs. Donald
Murray, formerly of the College of William and Mary, instructor in the
social sciences, with half-time in the department of government. Professor
Ivan M. Stone taught at the University of Nebraska during the summer
of 1946.

Dr. Charles P. Harper, state supervisor of occupational information and
guidance for West Virginia since 1942, has resigned that position to be-
come associate professor of political science at Marshall College. He was
formerly a member of the faculty of Glenville State Teachers College.

Dr. Ralph R. Temple, who taught for eight years at Brooklyn College
and more recently has been associated with military government in Italy,
has been appointed assistant director for public administration in the
State Division of the Pennsylvania Economy League.

In addition to his duties at New York University, Professor Henry P#

Jordan is lecturing at Queens College on Latin American governments
and politics.

Professor Karl Loewenstein has resumed teaching at Amherst College,
after serving in 1942-44 as special assistant to the Attorney-General in
Washington, in 1944-45 as legal adviser to the Emergency Committee for
Political Defense in Montevideo, and in 1945-46 as legal adviser to Mili-
tary Government in Berlin.

Dr. Spencer D. Albright has been appointed associate professor of his-
tory and government at the University of Richmond. Prior to entering
the Army in 1943, he was a lecturer in the department of political science
at the University of Washington.

After serving in the department since 1916, Dr. Jacob Tanger retired
in June as department head and professor of political science at Pennsyl-
vania State College. Dr. M. Nelson McGeary has been promoted to the
rank of associate professor and will offer the work in Pennsylvania govern-
ment previously in charge of Dr. Tanger.

Dr. Charles Chandler is serving as visiting professor of international
relations at Ursinus College during the absence of Dr. Eugene Miller, who
has a Penfield fellowship for a study of Canadian-Latin American rela-
tions.
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After four years of service in the U. S. Army, the last two of which
were spent in the Office of the Surgeon-General, Dr. Richard E. Yates has
returned to his post as assistant professor at Hendrix College, Conway,
Arkansas.

Dr. Waldo E. Waltz has resigned at the University of Maryland to
undertake private consultation work with the Smith-Rushmore Company
in the Denver area.

Professor W. Rolland Maddox, of the University of Kansas, died of a
heart ailment on October 3. He had been in poor health for two years.

Dr. Theodore W. Cousens is now on the staff of the Associated Colleges
of Upper New York as professor of history and government.

After fifteen months' service as U. S. Staff prosecutor at the Nuernberg
trials and adviser and research director to Justice Robert H. Jackson, Dr.
Robert M. W. Kempner, of Lansdowne, Pa., has returned to the United
States and is now engaged in lecturing on the political science and legal
aspects of the trials, and in special work for the War Department.

Dr. Felix E. Oppenheim, employed in the U. S. Department of State
earlier in the year, assumed in September an assistant professorship of
political science at the University of Delaware.

At Wells College, Mr. Kurt Wilk has been appointed associate professor
of government for the current academic year.

Dr. Marjorie Ruth Dilley, associate professor at Connecticut College,
has been made chairman of the recently established department of govern-
ment. Mr. Maurice J. Klain, formerly of New Jersey College for Women, •
is an instructor in the department.

Dr. Helmut Hirsch, of Roosevelt College, has been appointed visiting
instructor at the University of Chicago.

During the autumn quarter, the newly established Institute of Govern-
ment at the University of Utah presented a series of lectures on American-
Soviet relations. Participants and topics included Dr. Charles P. Schleicher,
on "American Policy Towards Russia."

Dr. Amy M. Gilbert, who served as visiting professor of history at
Temple University in 1945-46, has been appointed head of the department
of history and political science in the Associated Colleges of Upper New
York, including Champlain College, Mohawk College, and Sampson Col-
lege. Dr. Gilbert resides at Champlain College, but travels twice a month
to the other two colleges.
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Commander William B. Ballis has resigned at Ohio State University to
accept the position of chief of the Political Section of the Eastern Euro-
pean Branch, Division of Research for Europe, Department of State. He
has recently been separated from the Naval Service. His last assignment
was for 1945-46 as Assistant Naval Attache1 of the American Embassy,
Moscow, U.S.S.R.

Professor Pendleton Herring, formerly secretary of the Littauer School
of Public Administration at Harvard University, has been added to the
staff of the Carnegie Corporation of New York, with, however, leave of
absence to serve as director of the Atomic Energy Commission Group of
the United Nations.

Dr. John Brown Mason, at present visiting professor at Oberlin College,
served last spring as the Central European specialist on the staff of Her-
bert Hoover's Food Mission to Europe, and afterwards spent five months
organizing for the Hoover Library the collection of documents and publi-
cations relating to the history of World War II in some fifteen countries,
including Poland, Yugoslavia, and the occupied zone of Trieste.

At the University of Kentucky, Dr. Jasper B. Shannon has returned
with the rank of professor, after serving as acting director of the Graduate
School of the Department of Agriculture at Washington and more recently
as a member of the faculty of the Army University Training Center at
Florence, Italy. Mr. Alexander T. Edelmann, who was discharged from
the Army with the rank of Lieutenant-Colonel, has resumed his duties.
Mr. E. G. Trimble expects to return on January 1 after several years of
service with the President's Fair Employment Practices Committee and
the Office of Price Administration. The staff has been enlarged by a num-
ber of new members: Dr. Gladys M. Kammerer, formerly of Wellesley
College, Mr. Charles Povlovich, Mr. William D. Stout, and Mr. Kenneth
E. Vanlandingham.

During the autumn, Dean William F. Russell, of Teachers College, Co-
lumbia University, announced that a new institute sponsored by an inter-
national body of scholars, historians, philosophers, political scientists, and
sociologists "to study with scientific precision the relations between edu-
cation and democracy" has been organized at Teachers College, and would
open its program with a series of lectures on the United Nations be-
ginning November 20, together with a series of bi-monthly seminars con-
ducted by leading American and foreign scholars. The Institute of Studies
of Comparative Government and Education, as the center will be known,
will be under the executive directorship of Professor Boris Mirkine-
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Gu6tzevitch, eminent French scholar, dean of the Faculty of Law and
Political Science of l'Ecole des Hautes Etudes, and visiting professor at
Teachers College; and it is planned to launch a quarterly scientific re-
view, together with a series of monographs, of which the first, dealing
with the political, social, and educational ideas of the French Revolution,
is now in preparation.

Recent appointments at Indiana University include Joseph B. Kings-
bury as professor and Edward B. McPheron as assistant professor. Profes-
sor Kingsbury will have charge of both the general courses in public ad-
ministration and the seminar in administrative management. Professor
McPheroawill assume the duties of director of the Bureau of Government
Research, left vacant by Professor Pressly S. Sikes when he became dean
of the Junior Division of the University. After an absence of four years
for war work, Professor Roy V. Peel has returned to his position as pro-
fessor and director of the Institute of Politics; and after serving two years
with the Department of State, in this country and abroad, Professor
Edward H. Buehrig also has returned, with the rank of associate professor.
Mrs. Wilma Langdon Davis, director of the Institute of Training for
Government Service, worked during the summer with the United Nations.
New instructors in the department include Miss Grace Thomson, Mr.
Paul Willis, Mr. George Long, Mr. Louis Lambert, Mr. Garland Haas,
and Mr. Bruchard Davidson. Professor Oliver P. Field has resumed the
teaching of constitutional and administrative law.

The fifteenth annual meeting of the Southern Political Science Associa-
tion was held at the Hotel Andrew Johnson in Knoxville, Tennessee,
November 7-9. Sessions were devoted to the following topics, among
others: "Politics and Social Changes in the South," "Law and Administra-
tion in War and Reconversion"; "The Crisis of the Twentieth Century";
and "The Post-War International Order." Luncheon speakers included
Hon. Estes Kefauver, member of Congress, and Dr. Luther H. Evans,
Librarian of Congress—the latter representing the American Political
Science Association. The' retiring president of the Association was Pro-
fessor James Hart, of the University of Virginia, and the program chair-
man was Professor Robert J. Harris, of Louisiana State University.

Mr. William F. Larsen has been appointed to an instructorship at the
University of Tennessee.

At Lincoln University, Jefferson City, Missouri, Dr. J. Erroll Miller
has been promoted to the rank of associate professor.

Dr. Gordon G. Shipman is teaching political science and sociology at
Shurtleff College, Alton, Illinois.
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Mr. Samuel J. Eldersveld, who recently returned from service in the
Navy, has been appointed instructor at the University of Michigan.

Dr. George B. Telford, formerly of Miami University, has been ap-
pointed to an assistant professorship at the University of North Dakota.

At the University of Pittsburgh, Dr. Richard C. Baker, formerly of Al-
legheny College, has been appointed associate professor; Drs. Rosalind L.
Branning and Albert B. Martin have been promoted to assistant profes-
sorships; Messrs. Holbert N. Carroll, David R. Deener, and William C.
Seyler have been appointed instructors; and Mrs. Marian K. Finkelhor
has been appointed lecturer. Mr. William G. Willis has been granted a
leave of absence for graduate study at the University of Pennsylvania.

Dr. Earl E. Edgar, formerly on the staff of the College at the University
of Chicago, has been appointed associate professor of philosophy in the
Institute of Citizenship at Kansas State College. Lt. Col. Eric Tebow,
currently commanding officer of the Signal Corps Photographic Center in
New York City, will join the staff of the Institute on January 1,1947, as
associate professor of education specializing in the use of audio-visual
methods in adult education.

Since his appointment as head of the department of government and
politics at the University of Maryland, Dr. Joseph M. Ray has instituted
a research and survey service available to municipalities of the state. His
first printed report was "Improving the Government of Hagerstown."

Dr. Paul S. Dull has been appointed assistant professor at the Univer-
sity of Oregon. During the spring semester of 1946 he was assistant pro-
fessor at the University of Washington, and prior to that time served
three years in the U. S. Marine Corps Reserve, first as Japanese Language
Officer and later as Officer-in-Charge of the Japanese Language School,
Camp Elliot, California. He was separated from the service with the rank
of Captain in October, 1944, and became chief of *the Japan Intelligence
Section, Psychological Warfare Branch, OWI, in San Francisco.

The University of Mississippi political science department has been
enlarged this year by the addition of Dr. Charles N. Fortenberry as as-
sociate professor, Mr. J. Leiper Freeman, Jr., as acting assistant professor,
and Miss Mary Evelyn Blagg, as assistant director of the Bureau of
Public Administration and instructor. Dr. Fortenberry returned to Mis-
sissippi from teaching at Texas A. and M. College and North Texas State
College. Miss Blagg, who formerly taught at Texas State College for
Women, was in 1945-46 a fellow in the Southern Regional Training Pro-
gram in Public Administration, with work at the Universities of Alabama,
Tennessee, and Kentucky.
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At the Boston meeting of the National Council for the Social Studies,
November 28-30, one joint session with the American Political Science
Association was devoted to "Local Government: The Foundation of the
American Governmental System," with Professors Roy A. Price, of Syra-
cuse University, and Lashley G. Harvey, of Boston University, among the
speakers; and another to "Politics, Elections, and the Social Studies," with
Professors Arthur N. Holcombe, of Harvard University, and Harold R.
Bruce, of Dartmouth College, discussing "What the 1946 Elections Mean."

The sixty-sixth annual meeting of the Academy of Political Science,
New York, was held at the Astor Hotel on November 7-8. The general
topic was "Developing a Working International Order—Political, Eco-
nomic, and Social," with a session presided over by Professor Grayson L.
Kirk, of Columbia University, devoted to "International Politics and
International Order," and another, participated in by Professor Joseph
P. Chamberlain, of Columbia, dealing with "Social and Economic As-
pects." As usual, the addresses will be published in a volume of the
Academy's Proceedings.

Post-doctoral research training fellows appointed by the Social Science
Research Council for 1946-47 include William Ebenstein, Princeton Uni-
versity, for research on the relations of European Great Powers with
major countries of Latin America. A pre-doctoral field training fellow is
Martin Kriesberg, Harvard University, for study of methods and pro-
cedures currently employed in measuring public opinion, particularly poll-
ing techniques. Grants-in-aid have been awarded to Hugh McD. Clokie,
of the University of Manitoba, for completion of a study of the develop-
ment of English party organization; Charles Fairman, of Stanford Uni-
versity, for completion of a study of the development of constitutional
law, with special reference to the career of Joseph P. Bradley, Justice of
the U. S. Supreme Court, 1870-92; J. A. C. Grant, of U.C.L.A., for com-
pletion of a study of judicial protection of constitutional guarantees in
Colombia; Louise Overacker, of Wellesley College, for completion of a
study of the Australian party system; John E. Stoner, of Indiana Uni-
versity, for completion of a study of the r61e of interest groups in the
formulation and administration of economic regulations: Eric H. W.
Voegelin, of Louisiana State University, for completion of a history of
political ideas; and Harold Zink, of DePauw University, for completion
of a study of American Military Government in the European Theater of
Operations.

The Philippine Foreign Affairs Training Program of the Department of
State has now been in operation for approximately one year. During this
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time, three separate training sessions have been held, and three groups of
Philippine foreign service officers graduated. Most of the graduates of the
first two training groups have now assumed responsible positions in the
new Philippine Embassy in Washington. The work given the trainees in
the State Department has covered the broad fields of international rela-
tions and international law and diplomatic and consular practice. Regular
weekly readings and reports have been assigned the trainees, and exami-
nations held each Friday. On the completion of their training in the State
Department, a number of the trainees have been assigned abroad to
American foreign service establishments for training in the field. This pro-
gram, which, at the request of the Republic of the Philippines is to be con-
tinued for an indefinite period, is under the direction of Mr. E. W. Mill, of
the Office of Far Eastern Affairs in the State Department.

Augustus Raymond Hatton, familiarly known as "A. R.," died on No-
vember 12 in Austin, Texas. His death removes one of the most pictur-
esque, dynamic, and personable characters in political science circles.
Born in Vevey, a small town on the Ohio River in the county of Switzer-
land in Indiana—a county which boasts of never having been entered by
a railroad—as a farm-boy he attended country schools. He received his
advanced education at Franklin College, from which he was graduated
in 1898. He later studied at the University of Chicago, and received his
Ph.D. degree from that institution in 1907. Before taking his doctorate,
young Hatton taught at Franklin College and also served as an instructor
in the extension division of the University of Chicago. In 1907, he was
appointed the first incumbent of the Marcus A. Hanna chair of political
science at Western Reserve University. In 1911, he was engaged for one
year as a lecturer on municipal government at Harvard University. Hat-
ton remained at Western Reserve until 1927, when he became professor
and chairman of the department of political science at Northwestern
University. Retiring from the latter institution in 1940, he served as
visiting professor of government at the University of Texas in 1942-43
and visiting professor and adviser to the chancellor of the University of
Puerto Rico in 1943-44. Professor Hatton's chief contribution to political
science was his development of the technique of draftsmanship of city
charters and state constitutions. He actually drafted or assisted in the
drafting of more than one hundred city charters. In 1913, he was drafts-
man for the Cleveland Charter Commission, and he drafted the charter
adopted by the city in 1922 providing for a city manager and a council
elected by proportional representation. He served as a member of the
Cleveland city council during 1923-27. For many years he was a charter
consultant for the National Municipal League, and after 1929 was presi-

ht
tp

s:
//

do
i.o

rg
/1

0.
10

17
/S

00
03

05
54

00
05

21
63

 P
ub

lis
he

d 
on

lin
e 

by
 C

am
br

id
ge

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 P

re
ss

https://doi.org/10.1017/S0003055400052163


1178 THE AMERICAN POLITICAL SCIENCE REVIEW

dent of the Proportional Representation League and an honorary member
of the International City Managers Association. He was editor of the
Digest of City Charters published in 1906 and of Public Budgets in 1915,
as well as numerous articles on municipal government in professional and
learned journals. Since his retirement, Hatton had resided on his ranch in
Dripping Springs near Austin, Texas. Colleagues and associates remember
him as a stimulating teacher, as an indefatigable municipal reformer, as
a friend, guide, and councillor of younger colleagues, and as a civic monitor
in any community in which he lived.—KENNETH COLEGROVE.

ht
tp

s:
//

do
i.o

rg
/1

0.
10

17
/S

00
03

05
54

00
05

21
63

 P
ub

lis
he

d 
on

lin
e 

by
 C

am
br

id
ge

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 P

re
ss

https://doi.org/10.1017/S0003055400052163



